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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales
of Oil Products and Petrochemicals

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe
Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil Products and Petrochemicals (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the period from 3™ January 2022 to 31 December 2022 and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial
position of Hellenic Petroleum Single Member of Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil
Products and Petrochemicals as at December 31, 2022 and its financial performance and cash flows for
the period from 3™ January 2022 to 31 December 2022 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as endorsed by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as incorporated
in Greek Law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We remained
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), as incorporated in Greek Law,
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in
Greece, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information includes the Board of
Directors Report, for which reference is also made in section “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, as incorporated in Greek Law, will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, as incorporated in Greek Law, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Taking into consideration that management is responsible for the preparation of the Board of
Directors’ Report, according to the provisions of paragraph 5 article 2 of Law 4336/2015 (part B), we
report that:

a) Inour opinion the Board of Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the legal
requirements of article 150 of Law 4548/2018 and the content of the Board of Directors’
Report is consistent with the accompanying financial statements for the period from 3™
January 2022 to 31°t December 2022.

b) Based on the knowledge and understanding concerning Hellenic Petroleum Single Member
Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Oil Products and Petrochemicals and its
environment, obtained during our audit, we have not identified information included in the
Board of Directors’ Report that contains a material misstatement

Athens, 24 March 2023
The Certified Auditor Accountant

Andreas Hadjidamianou
SOELR.N. 61391

Ernst & Young (Hellas) Certified Auditors Accountants S.A.
8B Chimarras St., Maroussi
151 25, Greece
Company SOEL R.N. 107

Legal Name: ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS) Certified Auditors-Accountants S.A.
Distinctive title: ERNST & YOUNG

Legal form: Societe Anonyme

Registered seat: Chimarras 8B, Maroussi, 15125

General Commercial Registry No: 000710901000

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Loans, advances and long-term assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivable
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Share capital and share premium
Reserves

Retained Earnings

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Provisions

Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial instruments
Income tax payable

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

W o0 N

11
12
28
23
13

14
15

17
18
19
20
21
22

16
23
28
17
18

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
2.690.268 2.705.990
20.292 15.705
281.714 53.589
19.028 24.979
35.522 41.126
3.046.824 2.841.389
1.638.752 1.345.606
697.478 558.247
11.663 13.898
5.114 92.143
469.184 713.493
2.822.191 2.723.387
5.869.015 5.564.776
552.673 1.301.000
209.128 (598.696)
471.432 -
1.233.233 702.304
873.970 1.149.696
10.859 8.245
172.748 71.803
138.173 165.422
24.827 22.248
5.762 6.737
1.226.339 1.424.151
1.626.543 2.080.960
1.761 2.214
421.266 416
1.352.561 1.349.300
7.312 5.431
3.409.443 3.438.321
4.635.782 4.862.472
5.869.015 5.564.776

The Notes on pages 12 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers 5 13.467.343
Cost of sales 24 (11.912.875)
Gross profit/(loss) 1.554.468
Selling and distribution expenses 24 (143.570)
Administrative expenses 24 (95.620)
Other operating income and other gains 25 12.847
Other operating expense and other losses 25 (20.439)
Operating profit/(loss) 1.307.686
Finance income 26 2.912
Finance expense 26 (91.948)
Lease finance cost 18,26 (470)
Dividend income 3.023
Currency exchange gains/(losses) 27 1.366
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 1.222.569
Income tax 28 (515.426)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 707.143
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Other comprehensive income/(loss), that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss (net of tax):
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension plans 15 23.231

23.231

Other comprehensive income/(loss), that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss (net of tax):
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 15 4.315
Recycling of (gains)/losses on hedges through comprehensive income 15 (4.941)
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 22.605
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 729.748
Earnings/(Losses) per share (expressed in Euro per share) 29 12,83

The Notes on pages 12 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Capital
& Share Retained Total

Note Premium Reserves Earnings Equity
Balance at 3 January 2022 1.301.000 (598.696) - 702.304
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension
plans 15 - 23.231 - 23.231
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow
hedges 15 - 4.315 - 4.315
Recycling of (gains)/losses on hedges through
comprehensive income 15 - (4.941) - (4.941)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 22.605 - 22.605
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 707.143 707.143
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - 22.605 707.143 729.748
Dividends 30 - - (200.354) (200.354)
HELLENIQ Energy profits distributed to Company's
employees 15 1.535 - - 1.535
Transfer to statutory reserve 15 - 35.357 (35.357) -
Offset demerger reserve with share capital 15 (749.862) 749.862 - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 552.673 209.128 471.432 1.233.233

The Notes on pages 12 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash flows

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 31 510.612
Income tax received / (paid) 3.076
Net cash generated from operating activities 513.688
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 6,8 (195.975)
Dividends received 3.023
Interest received 26 2.912
Participation in share capital increase of subsidiaries and joint ventures 9 2.235
Net cash used in investing activities (187.805)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (86.596)
Dividends paid 30 (200.354)
Share capital increase through payment of Parent company dividends to employees 14 1.535
Proceeds from borrowings 1.069.000
Repayments of borrowings (1.347.503)
Payment of lease liabilities - principal 18 (7.169)
Payment of lease liabilities - interest 18 (470)
Net cash used in financing activities (571.557)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (245.674)
Cash and cash equivalents transferred at 3 January 2022 2,13 713.493
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents 1.366
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (245.674)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 469.184

The Notes on pages 12 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

In the context of the corporate transformation of the HELLENIC PETROLEUM Group and following the decisions of
the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of 10.12.2021, on January 3, 2022, it was approved -by virtue
of the decision of the Ministry of Development and Investments No 142903/03.01.2022 and registered on
03.01.2022 in GEMI with Registration Number 2767913, the demerger by way of hive-down of its refining, supply
and trading of oil products and petrochemicals sector and the establishment of a new company, pursuant to the
provisions of articles 57 and 59-74 of Law 4601/2019 and Law 4548/2018.

As a result, a new entity was incorporated under the name “HELLENIC PETROLEUM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE
ANONYME REFINING, SUPPLY AND SALES OF OIL PRODUCTS AND PETROCHEMICALS” with the trade name
“HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.” and its Articles of Association were approved. HELLENIC PETROLEUM
Holdings S.A. (former HELLENIC PETROLEUM S.A.) became the sole Shareholder of the Beneficiary Entity
“HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.”, by acquiring all 130.100.000 common, registered shares issued by the
Beneficiary Entity, with a nominal value of €10 each. Finally, Articles 1 (Name), 4 (Scope) and 19/paragraph 4
(Board of Directors) of the Articles of Association of the Demerged Entity were amended in accordance with the
resolution of the EGM held on 10.12.2021.

HELLENIC PETROLEUM Holdings S.A. was renamed to HELLENiQ ENERGY Holdings Société Anonyme and its
distinctive title HELLENiIQ ENERGY Holdings S.A., as approved by the Extraordinary General Meeting of its
shareholders held on 20 September 2022. HELLENIQ ENERGY Holdings S.A. is the parent company of HELLENIQ
ENERGY Group (the “Group”).

The share capital of the HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. (the “Company”) was determined at the Fair Value
of the refining, supply and trading of oil products and petrochemicals net assets as presented on the
transformation balance sheet dated 30 June 2021 pursuant to the provisions of articles 57 and 59-74 of Law
4601/2019 and Law 4548/2018. On 3 January 2022 the demerger was completed and the respective net assets
were hived down at the book values on that date, while the difference between the Fair Value and Book Value,
amounting to €749,9 million was accounted as a demerger reserve. The demerger reserve was offset with the
Company’s share capital on 22 December 2022, as approved by the extraordinary general meeting of its
shareholders (note 14).

The Company operates in the energy sector in Greece and its activities include refining and marketing of oil
products and production and marketing of petrochemical products.

The Company is incorporated in Greece, with an indefinite corporate life and the address of its registered office is
8" Chimarras Str. Maroussi, 15125 Greece. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of HELLENiQ ENERGY
Holdings S.A., listed on the Main Market of the Athens Stock Exchange. Based on IFRS 10 par.4 and Law 4308/2014
article 33, the Company is not required to publish consolidated financial statements as the Company and all its
subsidiaries and associates are consolidated in the financial statements of the parent company HELLENIQ ENERGY
Holdings SA. (Head office Maroussi Attica, Chimarras 8A, CRN 296601000)

The financial statements of HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2023 and by the general meeting of shareholders on
27 March 2023.

Notes to the financial statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), as endorsed by the European Union (“EU”) and present the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows on a going concern basis.

The present financial statements relate to the period beginning on the date on which the hive down transaction
of the refining and petrochemicals sector was completed, through which all of assets and liabilities of Hellenic
Petroleum S.A. prior to the demerger, identified as constituting the abovementioned sector, were transferred to
a new company established for this purpose. The company from which the hive down was originated was
transformed into a Holding company under the name HELLENIQ ENERGY Holdings S.A. As described in detail in
note “Corporate Transformation -Demerger”, the aforementioned transaction was accounted for as an intragroup
reorganization under which, in accordance with the accounting policy of the Group, assets and liabilities were
transferred to the new company at book values while HELLENiQ ENERGY Holdings S.A. recognized an investment
in the new company equal to the book values on net assets transferred.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required to
consider whether the Company can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Company’s business activities, together with factors which the Directors consider are likely to affect its
development, financial performance and financial position are set out in the Director’s report. The most significant
financial and operational risks and uncertainties that may have an impact upon the Company’s performance and
their mitigation are outlined in note 3, including liquidity risk, market risk, credit risk and capital risk to these
financial statements.

The future financial performance of the Company is dependent upon the wider economic environment in which
it operates. The factors that particularly affect the environment and therefore the performance of the Company
include macroeconomic conditions and supply and demand for crude oil and oil products that affect their pricing
and consequently benchmark refining margins which is a key determinant of profitability, in the short term, as
well as energy transition in the medium to long term. Furthermore, geopolitical developments, especially in the
region can have an impact on the supply/demand balances and therefore the pricing of crude and oil products
and refining margins, as well as natural gas and electricity pricing, as well as compliance costs associated arising
principally from EU Emissions Trading System (ETS), which together will affect variable operating expenditure.

The aforementioned factors are to an extent independent from each other but at the same time are not mutually
exclusive as such their parallel occurrence could impact the financial performance of the Company in opposite
directions. In 2022 demand for oil products grew in line with the post pandemic global economic recovery leading
to higher benchmark margins. At the same time the cost of electricity and Natural Gas adversely affected the cost
base for refining and profitability.

In general, factors that adversely affect the demand for oil products such as negative macroeconomic conditions,
supply and demand for crude oil that result in price increases or increase in the cost elements of refining oil
products such as cost of natural gas, electricity and costs from EU ETS, have a negative impact on the Company’s
profitability. Conversely, ample supply of crude oil and/ or a higher demand for oil products would lead to higher
benchmark margins and profitability.
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The Company’s financial forecasts were modelled over an 18-month period, ending 30 June 2024 and reflect the
outcomes that the Directors consider most likely, based on the information available at the date of signing of these
financial statements. This includes the expectation of demand evolution and benchmark refining margins and
associated costs applicable to the Company. The Company’s financial forecasts have been prepared with
consideration to independent third-party data, which inter-alia include forecasted international commodity prices
used in the calculation of benchmark refining margins, demand evolution and operating costs.

Management expects that all committed borrowings maturing within 12 months from the balance sheet date will
be refinanced with similar terms. Discussions in relation to €870 million of borrowings maturing in the next 12
months from the balance sheet date are in process for the refinancing with the respective lenders and
Management is confident that such discussions will conclude successfully. Should additional funding be required,
the Company can draw from committed term facilities limits €320 million without further approvals as well as
from uncommitted facilities €314 million, subject to approvals from the respective financial institutions. In the 12-
month period ending 31 December 2022, the Company successfully refinanced €745 million of maturing
committed facilities at lower margins whilst improving the maturity profile of its debt liabilities.

At 31 December 2022, the Company held cash of €0,5 billion and has a positive operating working capital position.
Its total loans and borrowings amount to €2,2 billion, €1,8 billion relate to committed term facilities and €0,4
billion to uncommitted short-term revolving facilities on demand. Of its total borrowings, an amount of €0,9 billion
of term loans and €0,4 billion to uncommitted short-term revolving facilities fall due within the next 12 months
from the balance sheet date. Details of these balances and their maturities are presented in note 17.

In the 18-month period assessed and considering successful refinancing of maturing debt obligations, the
Company expects to generate sufficient cash from operations to meet all its operating liabilities as they fall due
and planned investments. Management has exercised judgement and concluded that, at the time of approving
the financial statements the expectation is that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, being at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis, except for the following:

e  Financial instruments — some of which are measured at fair value (notes 3.3 and 23);
e Defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with IFRS, requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4. Estimates and
judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events as assessed to be reasonable under the present circumstances.

2.11 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

The Company has not early adopted any other of the following standard, interpretation or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective. In addition, the Company is in the process of assessing the impact of all
standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective on the financial statements.

e |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts: The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on or before
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the date it first applies IFRS 17. This is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts,
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance
contracts issued, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretional participation
contracts. The Company does not issue contracts in scope of IFRS 17; therefore, its application does not have
an impact on the Company's financial performance, financial position or cash flows.

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies
(Amendments): The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with
earlier application permitted. The amendments provide guidance on the application of materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. In particular, the amendments to IAS 1 replace the requirement
to disclose "significant" accounting policies with a requirement to disclose "material" accounting policies. Also,
guidance and illustrative examples are added in the Practice Statement to assist in the application of the
materiality concept when making judgements about accounting policy disclosures.

e |AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates
(Amendments): The amendments become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 with earlier application permitted and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. The amendments introduce a new
definition of accounting estimates, defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty, if they do not result from a correction of prior period error. Also, the amendments
clarify what changes in accounting estimates are and how these differ from changes in accounting policies
and corrections of errors.

e |AS 12 Income taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments): The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 with
earlier application permitted. The amendments narrow the scope of and provide further clarity on the initial
recognition exception under IAS 12 and specify how companies should account for deferred tax related to
assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction, such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is a matter
of judgement, having considered the applicable tax law, whether such deductions are attributable for tax
purposes to the liability or to the related asset component. Under the amendments, the initial recognition
exception does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. It only applies if the recognition of a lease asset and lease liability (or decommissioning
liability and decommissioning asset component) give rise to taxable and deductible temporary differences
that are not equal.

e |FRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments): The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. The
amendments are intended to improve the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction in IFRS 16, while it does not change the accounting for
leases unrelated to sale and leaseback transactions. In particular, the seller-lessee determines ‘lease
payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ in such a way that the seller-lessee would not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. Applying these requirements does not prevent the
seller-lessee from recognising, in profit or loss, any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a
lease. A seller-lessee applies the amendment retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application, being the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which an entity first applied IFRS 16. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

e JAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(Amendments): The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2024, with earlier application permitted, and will need to be applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.
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The objective of the amendments is to clarify the principles in IAS 1 for the classification of liabilities as either
current or non-current. The amendments clarify the meaning of a right to defer settlement, the requirement
for this right to exist at the end of the reporting period, that management intent does not affect current or
non-current classification, that options by the counterparty that could result in settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments do not affect current or non-current classification. Also, the amendments
specify that only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date will affect a
liability’s classification. Additional disclosures are also required for non-current liabilities arising from loan
arrangements that are subject to covenants to be complied with within twelve months after the reporting
period. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

e Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture: The
amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS
28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves
a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. In December
2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its
research project on the equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the
EU.

2.2 Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments are presented at the cost of the interest acquired in the subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures
less any provisions for impairment.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The executive committee is the chief operating decision-maker, who makes strategic
decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The
executive committee is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer and the General Managers of the Company. The
Company’s key operating segments are disclosed in Note 5.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Euro, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Given that the Company’s primary activities are in oil refining
and trading, in line with industry practices, most crude oil and oil product trading transactions are based on the
international reference prices of crude oil and oil products in US Dollars. The Company translates this value to
Euro at the time of any transaction.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
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the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

For transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency the date of
the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-
monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the same line as the transaction they relate to, in the statement
of comprehensive income, except those that relate to borrowings and cash, which are presented in a separate line

”

(“Currency exchange gains/(losses)”).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is comprised mainly of land, buildings, plant & machinery, transportation means
and furniture & fixtures. Property, plant and equipment are shown at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss of the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Refinery
turnaround costs that take place periodically are capitalised and charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis
until the next scheduled turnaround, to the extent that such costs either extend the useful economic life of the
equipment or improve its production capacity.

Assets under construction are assets (mainly related to the refinery units) that are in the process of construction
or development, and are carried at cost. Cost includes cost of construction, professional fees and other direct
costs. Assets under construction are not depreciated, as the corresponding assets are not yet available for use.

Land is also not depreciated. Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful economic life, as shown on the table below for the
main classes of assets:

— Buildings 10— 40 years
—Plant & Machinery

= Specialised industrial installations and Machinery 10— 35 years

= Pipelines 30 —-50years

= QOther equipment 4 — 25 years
— Vehicles and means of transportation 5—25 years

— Furniture and fixtures

= Computer hardware 3 —5years
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= QOther furniture and fixtures 4 —10years

Specialised industrial installations include refinery units, petrochemical plants and tank facilities.

The assets’ residual values and estimated useful economic lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

If the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount then it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

The cost and related accumulated depreciation of assets retired or sold are removed from the accounts at the
time of sale or retirement and any gain or loss, which is determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount, is included in the statement of comprehensive income, within “other operating income/(expenses) and
other gains/(losses)”.

2.6 Leases
2.6.1 Right-of-use assets

At inception of a contract, that is the earlier of the date of a lease agreement and the date of commitment by the
parties to the principal terms and conditions of the lease, the Company assess whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. Also, the Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-
use assets are subject to impairment on their own, or together with the cash generating unit to which they belong.

2.6.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the period on which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset. The result of this re-measurement is disclosed in a line of the right-of-use assets
note as modifications.

(a) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below five
thousand Euros). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(b) Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew
(as a change in business strategy).

IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) has issued, among others, a summary of decisions reached in
its public meetings to clarify interpretations in respect to IFRS 16 on the following topics:

(c) Subsurface rights

The Committee concluded that the arrangement, presented in its decision, where a pipeline operator obtains the
right to place a pipeline in an underground space constitutes a lease and therefore this arrangement as presented
in this decision should be in scope of IFRS 16. As disclosed in Note 7, the Company operates a number of subsurface
pipelines within the boundaries of various municipalities, in accordance with relevant laws, without the
requirement to pay any compensation for them. As described in Note 32 of these financial statements, certain
municipalities have proceeded with the imposition of duties and fines relating to the rights of way. The Company
has appealed against such amounts imposed as described in the note and believes the outcome will be favourable.
The Company considers these do not fall within the scope of IFRS 16 as there is no requirement to pay
compensation.

(d) Lease term

The Committee issued a decision that in assessing the notion of no more than an insignificant penalty, when
establishing the lease term, the analysis should not only capture the termination penalty payment specified in the
contract, but use a broader economic consideration of penalty and thus include all kinds of possible economic
outflows related to termination of the contract. The Company applies this decision and uses judgment in
estimating the lease term, especially in cases, where the agreements do not provide for a predetermined term,
such as rights of use of coastal zones as described in Note 7. The Company considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

(e) Lessor accounting
The Company enters into certain sublease agreements with third parties and therefore, acts as an intermediate

lessor. In classifying a sublease, the Company acting as the intermediate lessor shall classify the sublease as a
finance lease or an operating lease as follows:

Notes to the financial statements
(19)/(72)



Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.

Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS

for the 1%t Fiscal Year from 3 January to 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwise stated)

- if the head lease is a short-term lease that the Company, as a lessee, has accounted for applying paragraph 6
of the standard, the sublease shall be classified as an operating lease.

- otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by reference to the right-of- use asset arising from the head lease,
rather than by reference to the underlying asset.

The Company has assessed all subleases it enters into based on the above criteria and classifies these as either
operating or finance. As at 31 December 2022, all leases where the Company acts as an intermediate lessor were
assessed and evaluated as operating.

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are added to the cost of the asset during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use.

Borrowing costs are capitalised to the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

2.8 Intangible assets
(a) Licences and rights

Licenses and rights have a definite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is being calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives, which
usually range from 3 to 25 years.

(b) Computer software

The category computer software includes primarily the costs of implementing the (ERP) computer software
program. Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives (1 to 5 years).

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether an indication of impairment exists. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and, are tested annually for
impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use (discounted cash flows an asset is expected to
generate based upon management’s expectations of future economic and operating conditions). For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows (cash-generating units). An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
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the Company estimates the asset’s, or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

2.10  Financial assets
2.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.23 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within (a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the

Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

e Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

e Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets

designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value.
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Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives are also categorised as ‘held for trading’ unless they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period, otherwise they are classified as non-current.

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

(b) Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: a) the
financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCl when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the profit or loss of the statement of comprehensive income, when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company elected to classify irrevocably its listed equity investments under this category.
2.10.2 Derecognition and impairment

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
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of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement.
In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

e Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (note 4)
e Trade receivables (note 12)

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

2.10.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

As part of its risk management policy, the Company utilises currency and commodity derivatives to mitigate the
impact of volatility in commodity prices and foreign exchange rates. Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of the derivative financial instruments are recognised at
each reporting date either in the statement of comprehensive income or in other comprehensive income,
depending on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument. If so, the nature of the item being
hedged is also disclosed. The Company designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) Hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge) and

(b) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Company documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions.

The documentation also includes both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis how it will assess the
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that
they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

The instruments used for this risk management include commodity exchange traded contracts (ICE futures), full
refinery margin forwards, product price forward contracts or options.
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of these derivatives is recognised in other comprehensive income.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income within “Other operating income/ (expenses) and other gains/ (losses)”. Amounts accumulated in equity
are recycled in the statement of comprehensive income in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss
(i.e. when the forecast transaction being hedged takes place) within cost of sales.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the derivative is de-designated and the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity is immediately transferred to the statement of comprehensive income within “Other operating
income/(expenses) and other gains/(losses)”.

Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are classified as derivatives at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in the fair value of the derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.12  Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants related to Property, Plant
and Equipment received by the Company are initially recorded as deferred government grants and included in
“Other non-current liabilities”. Subsequently, they are credited to the statement of comprehensive income over
the useful lives of the related assets in direct relationship to the depreciation charged on such assets.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories comprise crude oil and other raw materials, refined and semi-finished products, petrochemicals,
merchandise, consumables and other spare parts.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the monthly weighted
average cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads. It does not include borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, where applicable. Spare parts consumed within a year are carried as inventory
and recognised in cost of sales, in the statement of comprehensive income when consumed.

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 20-90-day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Trade receivables include bills of exchange and promissory notes from customers.
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For trade receivables, which are not in default the Company applies the simplified approach, in accordance with
IFRS 9 and calculates ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. On the other hand, trade receivables in default are
assessed on a case-by-case basis. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income and is included in “Selling and distribution expenses”.

2.15  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments such as marketable securities and time deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Cash pledged as collateral is included in “Trade and other receivables”.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if
reissued, is recognised in equity.

2.17  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as finance cost or other operating income.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

In cases where an existing borrowing of the Company is renegotiated, this might result in modification or an
exchange of borrowings with the lenders that could be carried out in a number of ways. Whether a modification
or exchange of borrowings represents a settlement of the original debt, or merely a renegotiation of that debt,
determines the accounting treatment that should be applied by the borrower. When the terms of the existing
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borrowings are substantially different from the terms of the modified or exchanged borrowings, such a
modification or exchange is treated as an extinguishment of the original borrowing and the recognition of a new
liability; any difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company considers the terms to be substantially different if either the discounted present value of the future
cash flows under the new terms, including any costs or fees incurred, using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original borrowing or
there is a substantial change in the terms from a qualitative perspective. Qualitative factors may include:

. the currency in which the borrowing is denominated;
. the interest rate (that is fixed versus floating rate);
. changes in covenants.

2.18  Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense or credit for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax estimated on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, as well as additional taxes for prior years. Tax is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period that generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. Any interest and
penalties arising on uncertain tax positions are considered as part of income tax.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is
not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business
combination, that at the time of the transaction does not affect either accounting or taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those deductible temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities, where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.19  Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations
The Company has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate
State pension fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

Defined benefit pension plans

Under Greek labour laws, employees and workers are entitled to post employment payments in the event of
retirement with the amount of payment varying in relation to the employee’s or worker’s compensation and
length of service. This program is considered as a defined benefit plan.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period, less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to
the terms of the related pension obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the statement of profit or loss in employee
benefit expense (except where included in the cost of an asset), reflects the increase in the defined benefit

obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s employees are covered by one of several Greek State sponsored pension funds which relates to
the private sector and provides pension and pharmaceutical benefits. Each employee is required to contribute a
portion of their monthly salary to the funds, with the Company also contributing a portion. Upon retirement, the
pension fund is responsible for paying the employees retirement benefits. As such, the Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits under this plan.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The company recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the company can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of I1AS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
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redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(c) Share-based compensation

Employees may receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments as part of a share option plan. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, at the date of granting. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. At each reporting period end, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
statement of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company may issue new shares. In that case, the proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised. The Company has no share-based compensation schemes in force for 2022.

(d) Short-term paid absences

The Company recognises the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of paid absences in the
case of accumulating paid absences, when the employees render service that increases their entitiement to future
paid absences.

2.20  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the increases specific to the liability.

No provisions are recognized for possible future obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the
Company or for present obligations, if it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability. For such cases the Company discloses a contingent liability.
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2.22 Environmental liabilities

The Company has an environmental policy which complies with existing legislation and any obligations resulting
from its environmental and operational licences. In order to comply with all rules and regulations, the Company
has set up a monitoring mechanism in accordance with the requirements of the relevant authorities. Furthermore,
investment plans are adjusted to reflect any known future environmental requirements.

Liabilities for environmental remediation costs are recognised when environmental assessments or clean-ups are
probable and the associated costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these provisions coincides
with the commitment to a formal plan of action or, if earlier, on divestment or on closure of inactive sites. The
amount recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure required, based on the relevant environmental studies.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the estimated
future expenditure.

The obligation of the Company to meet its CO2 emission targets is treated as follows: European ETS register
allocates emission rights to refineries annually. Allowances received or purchased are recognised at cost. A
provision is recognised for the net obligation payable for the emission quantities that exceed the pre-allocated
allowances, after taking into account any purchases of emission certifications. The provision recognised is
measured at the amount that it is expected to cost the entity to settle the obligation, in addition to the cost of any
certificates purchased. This will be the market price at the balance sheet date of the allowances required to cover
any emissions deficit made to date.

Purchases of CO2 emission rights during the year and assets held at reporting date are presented as intangible
assets (note 8).

2.23  Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax and any excise duties,
rebates and discounts. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Control over goods sold and services rendered is transferred to
the customer upon delivery of the respective products or service respectively. Revenue is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Payment terms vary in line with the type of sales transaction and depend mainly on the products sold or services
rendered, the distribution channels, as well as each customer’s specifics.

The Company assesses whether it acts as a principal or agent in each of its revenue arrangements. The Company
has concluded that in all sales transactions it acts as a principal.

Revenue is recognised as follows:
Sales of goods — wholesale

Revenue is recognised when a contractual promise to a customer (performance obligation) is fulfilled by
transferring the promised goods (which is when the customer obtains control over the promised goods). If a
contract contains more than one performance obligation, the total transaction price of the contract is allocated
among the individual, separate performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. The
amount of revenue recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation based on the
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consideration that the Company expects to receive in accordance with the terms of the contracts with the
customers.

Provision of services

For sales of services, revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, as the
customer obtains control over the promised services, by reference to stage of completion of each specific
performance obligation and assessed on the basis of the actual service provided (using appraisals of the results
achieved and milestones reached), as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company recognizes this amount as revenue
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur in the future.

Volume discounts

The Company provides volume discounts to customers based on thresholds specified in the respective contracts.
Options for volume related discounts are assessed by the Company to determine whether they constitute a
material right that the customer would not receive without entering into that contract. For all such options that
are considered as material rights, the Company assesses the likelihood of its exercise and then the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the option is deferred and recognized when it is either exercised or lapsed.

The Company has concluded that volume discounts constitute a material right which should be recognized over
time up to the point it is either exercised or lapsed. All such discounts are accrued within the financial year.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the company
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are declared and appropriately authorised, or approved by the
Company’s Shareholders’ General Meeting. Interim dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are recognized
as liabilities when it becomes certain they will be paid, after all pertinent legal procedures before payment have
been finalized.

2.25  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
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Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9 requirements and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income.

2.26  Corporate Transformation — Hive Down

The demerger by way of hive-down of the refining and petrochemicals sector resulted in the incorporation of a
new company (under the name Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales
of Qil Products and Petrochemicals) which assumed all the activities of the company prior to demerger relating to
the aforementioned sector. It is therefore considered as business combination between entities under common
control. Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil Products and
Petrochemicals is the subsidiary of the Hellenic Petroleum S.A. prior to demerger which in turn transformed into
a Holding company under the name Hellenic Petroleum Holdings S.A. and then renamed to HELLENiQ ENERGY
Holdings S.A.

The respective transaction, as business combination between entities under common control, is scoped out of the
provisions of IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. In addition, since Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe
Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Oil Products and Petrochemicals is a newly established company, it cannot
be considered as the acquirer in the transaction and therefore the demerger cannot be considered as a business
combination but as a reorganization within the Group.

In accordance with the accounting policy of the Group, the transactions between group entities, that involve the
incorporation of new entities to which the assets and liabilities of a sector of another group entity are transferred,
are recorded at their book values in the books of the transferring company. Furthermore, information from the
date of the intragroup reorganization and onwards will be included in the separate financial statements of the
Company.

In this context the accounting treatment of the Demerger involved the following:

i. The assets and liabilities which were not maintained by HELLENIQ ENERGY Holdings S.A. and were
determined to relate to the refining and petrochemical sector were transferred to Hellenic Petroleum Single
Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Oil Products and Petrochemicals at their book values.

ii. The investments in the subsidiaries Asprofos S.A., Diaxon S.A., HELPE Apollon Maritime Co, Global Albania
S.A. and Athens Airport Fuel Pipeline Company S.A. were transferred to Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe
Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil Products and Petrochemicals at their book values.

iii. Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil Products and
Petrochemicals recognized on its Statement of Financial Position the assets, liabilities and equity reserves
transferred based on their carrying amounts and any difference between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities transferred and the fair value of share capital recognized directly in retained earnings as demerger
reserve. Accordingly, HELLENiQ ENERGY Holdings S.A., recognized as cost of investment in the Company the book
value of net assets transferred.

iv. The equity of Hellenic Petroleum Single Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil
Products and Petrochemicals, at the date of the demerger, comprises of the share capital as this was determined
based on the Transformation Balance Sheet prepared in accordance with the requirements of articles 57 and 59-
74 of Law 4601/2019 and Law 4548/2018, and includes the assets and liabilities at the date of the demerger and
the equity reserves as analyzed in note 15.
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The table below presents the assets and liabilities and equity reserves transferred to Hellenic Petroleum Single
Member Societe Anonyme Refining, Supply and Sales of Qil Products and Petrochemicals, at the hive down date,
and presented in the Statement of Financial Position as opening balances as at 3rd January 2022:

HELLENIQ
ENERGY
Balances Holdings S.A.'s HELLENIQ
HEL.PE. S.A. transferred to participation in ENERGY
Prior to HEL.PE. HEL.PE. Holdings S.A.
Opening balances as of 3 January 2022 demerger R.S.S.0.P.P.S.A. R.S.S.0.P.P.S.A. balances
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.707.520 2.705.990 - 1.530
Right-of-use assets 26.547 15.705 - 10.842
Intangible assets 53.863 53.589 - 274
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 933.596 24.979 702.304 1.610.921
Deferred income tax assets - - - 10.996
Loans, advances and long-term assets 143.172 41.126 - 102.046
3.864.698 2.841.389 702.304 1.736.609
Current assets
Inventories 1.345.606 1.345.606 - -
Trade and other receivables 601.890 558.247 - 43.643
Income tax receivable 13.898 13.898 - -
Derivative financial instruments 92.143 92.143 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 843.493 713.493 - 130.000
2.897.030 2.723.387 - 173.643
Assets held for sale 122.338 - - 122.338
Total assets 6.884.066 5.564.776 702.304 2.032.590
EQUITY
1.994.635 702.304 - 1.994.635
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1.149.696 1.149.696 - -
Lease liabilities 16.532 8.245 - 8.287
Deferred income tax liabilities 60.807 71.803 - -
Retirement benefit obligations 174.211 165.422 - 8.789
Provisions 22.248 22.248 - -
Other non-current liabilities 11.956 6.737 - 5.219
1.435.450 1,424,151 - 22.295
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2.092.568 2.080.960 - 11.608
Derivative financial instruments 2.214 2.214 - -
Income tax payable 416 416 - -
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1.349.300 1.349.300 - -
Lease liabilities 8.216 5.431 - 2.785
Dividends payable 1.267 - - 1.267
3.453.981 3.438.321 - 15.660
Total liabilities 4.889.431 4.862.472 - 37.955
Total equity and liabilities 6.884.066 5.564.776 - 2.032.590
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities are primarily centred on Downstream Refining (incl. Petrochemicals) & Trading of
petroleum products. As such, the Company is exposed to a variety of financial and commodity markets’ risks
including foreign exchange and commodity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow risk and interest-rate risk.
In line with international best practices and within the context of local markets and legislative framework, the
Company’s overall risk management policies aim at reducing possible exposure to market volatility and / or
mitigating its adverse effects on the financial position of the Company to the extent possible. In general, the key
factors that impact the Company’s operations are summarised as follows:

Currency: The Company’s business is naturally hedged against a functional currency risk. All petroleum industry
transactions are referenced to international benchmark quotes for crude oil and oil products in USD. All
international purchases and sales of crude oil and products are conducted in USD and all sales into local markets
are either in USD prices or converted to local currency for accounting and settlement reasons using the USD
reference on the date of the transaction. As a result, the Company's operations are mainly exposed to the risk of
fluctuating the dollar exchange rate against the euro. The strengthening of the US Dollar against the Euro has a
positive effect on the Company’s financial results while in the opposite event, both the financial results and
balance sheet items (inventory, investments, receivables, liabilities in US dollar) would be valued at lower levels.

Prices: The Company is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in prevailing market prices. Commodity price risk
management is supervised by the Supply and Trading Department. Non-commodity price risk management is
carried out by the Finance Department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Finance
Department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with Group Finance and the Company's
operating units.

Securing continuous crude oil supplies: The Company procures crude oil from a number of suppliers, including
national oil companies and international traders primarily in, but not limited to, the Middle East, North Africa and
Black Sea region. The process of sourcing of crude oil is coordinated by the Supply and Trading department in line
with production plans. Following the developments in Ukraine, and the imposition of economic sanctions against
the Russian Federation, the Company has successfully substituted its crude oil and intermediary feedstock supply
originating from the Russian Federation with equivalent quantities and grades from other sources. The Company’s
three coastal refineries’ location, the flexibility provided by the configuration and technology of each refinery
provide access to a wide range of feedstock sourcing opportunities, which enables the Company to respond to
supply shortages of certain crude grades without materially affecting its operations and financial performance.

Financing of operations: The key priorities of the Company are the management of the ‘Assets and Liabilities’
maturity profile, funding in accordance with its strategic investment plan and the liquidity risk management for its
operational needs. The vast majority of the Company’s borrowings are committed credit facilities with financial
institutions. As of 31 December 2022, approximately 72% of total debt (3 January 2022: c. 71%) is financed by
long-term committed credit lines, while the remaining debt is being financed by short-term revolving credit
facilities (bilateral lines) and intercompany borrowings. Additional information is disclosed in paragraph (c)
Liquidity risk below and Note 17.

Capital management: Another key priority of the Company has been the management of its Assets. Overall the
Company has approximately €3,0 billion of capital employed which is driven from investment in fixed assets and
working capital. Current assets are mainly funded with current liabilities (incl. short-term bank debt) which are
used to finance working capital (inventories and receivables). As of 31 December 2022, net debt level, excluding
leases, is 59% of total capital employed while the remaining is financed through shareholders equity (note 3.2). In
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the medium term the Company’s intention is to reduce its net debt levels through utilisation of the incremental
operating cashflows. This is expected to lead to lower Debt to Equity ratio, better matched Asset and Liability
maturity profiles as well as lower financing costs.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

As explained in note 2.4, the functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is the Euro. However,
in line with industry practice in all international crude oil and oil trading transactions, underlying commodity prices
are based on international reference prices quoted in US dollars.

Foreign currency exchange risk arises on three types of exposure:

—  Financial position translation risk: Most of the inventory held by the Company is reported in Euro while
its underlying value is determined in USD. Thus, a possible devaluation of the USD against the Euro leads
to areduction in the realisable value of inventory included in the statement of financial position. In order
to manage this risk, a significant part of the Company’s payables (sourcing of crude oil and petroleum
products) is denominated in USD resulting to an offsetting impact to the one described above. It should
be noted however, that while in the case of USD devaluation the impact on the statement of financial
position is mitigated, in cases of USD appreciation the mark-to-market valuation of USD-denominated
debt liabilities leads to a reported foreign exchange loss with no compensating benefit as stocks continue
to be included in the statement of financial position at cost. It is estimated, that at 31 December 2022 if
the Euro had weakened against the US dollar by 5% with all other variables held constant, pre-tax results
would have been approximately €33 million lower, as a result of foreign exchange losses on translation
of US dollar denominated receivables, payables, cash and borrowings.

—  Gross Margin transactions and translation risk: The fact that most of the transactions in crude oil and oil
products are based on international Platt’s USD prices leads to exposure in terms of the Gross Margin
translated in Euro. Market volatility had an adverse impact on the cost of mitigating this exposure; as a
result the Company did not actively hedge material amounts of the Gross margin exposure. This
exposure is linearly related to the Gross margin of the Company in that the appreciation/ depreciation
of Euro vs. USD leads to a respective translation loss/ (gain) on the period results.

—  Local subsidiaries exposure: Where the Company operates in non-Euro markets there is an additional
exposure in terms of cross currency translation between USD (price base), Euro reporting currency and
local currency. Where possible the Company seeks to manage this exposure by transferring the exposure
for pooling at group levels. Although material for local subsidiaries’ operations, the overall exposure is
not considered material for the Company.

(ii) Commodity price risk

The Company’s primary activity as a refiner involves exposure to commodity prices. Changes in current or forward
absolute price levels vs acquisition costs affect the value of inventory while exposure to refining margins
(combination of crude oil and product prices) affect the future cash flows of the business.

In the case of price risk, the level of exposure is determined by the amount of priced inventory carried at the end
of the reporting period. In periods of sharp price decline, as Company policy is to report its inventory at the lower
of historical cost and net realisable value, results are affected by the reduction in the carrying value of the
inventory. The extent of the exposure relates directly to the level of stocks and rate of price decrease. This
exposure is partly hedged with paper derivatives to the extent that the cost of such instruments is considered
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attractive, from a risk-return point of view and subject to the structure of the market (contango vs. backwardation)
as well as credit capacity for long dated transactions.

Refining margin exposure relates to the absolute level of margin generated by the operation of the refineries. This
is determined by Platt’s prices and varies on a daily basis; as an indication of the impact to the Company financial
results, a change in the refinery margins has a proportionate impact on the Company’s profitability. Where
possible, the Company aims to hedge the part of its production which will be sold in the future and hence will be
exposed to forward pricing, thus generating higher price risk upon completion of the sale. This, however, is not
possible to do in all market conditions, such as a backwardated market structure, where future prices are below
their spot levels, or when there is no credit capacity for derivatives transactions.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s operating income and cash flows are not materially affected by changes in market interest rates,
given the low level of prevailing reference rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk, while borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.
The Company’s borrowings are at variable rates of interest. Depending on the levels of net debt at any given period
of time, any change in the base interest rates (EURIBOR or LIBOR), has a proportionate impact on the Company
results. At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on Euro denominated borrowings had been 0,5% higher with all
other variables held constant, pre-tax gains for the year would have been €11 million lower.

(b) Credit risk

(i) Risk Management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to wholesale customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. If wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if
there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

(ii) Credit quality

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents is assessed by reference to external credit ratings obtained from
S&P, in the table below:

Bank rating (in €million) 31 December 2022
A+ 1
A- 57
BBB- 4
B+ 306
B- 101
No rating -
Total 469

Financial institutions with credit ratings B+ and B-, where the Company maintains cash deposits, are also lenders
of the Company. A Group credit committee monitors material credit exposures on a Company wide basis. See note
3 for further disclosures on credit risk.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management entails maintaining sufficient cash reserves and financial headroom, through
committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company aims to maintain
flexibility in its funding operations through the use of cash and committed credit facilities.

Where deemed beneficial to the Company, and in order to achieve better commercial terms (e.g. better pricing,
higher credit limits, longer payment terms), the Company provides for the issuance of short-term letters of credit
or guarantee for the payment of liabilities arising from trade creditors. These instruments are issued using the
Company’s existing credit lines with local and international banks, and are subject to the approved terms and
conditions of each bank, regarding the amount, currency, maximum tenor, collateral etc.

The Company’s plans with respect to term facilities expiring within the next 12 months are presented below, in
million Euros.

Scheduled for Scheduled for
(€ million) 1H23 2H23 2023 repayment refinancing
Contractual Term Facility Repayments

€400 million Syndicated RCF Jun 2023 340 - 340 - 340
€400 million RCF Dec 2023 - 280 280 - 280
€100 million RCF Mar 2023 100 - 100 - 100
€150 million RCF Oct 2023 - 150 150 - 150
Total 440 430 870 - 870

Within Q4 2022, the Company refinanced revolving credit facilities amounting to €900 million on maturity, whose
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2022 is €745 million (note 17). In February 2023, the Company refinanced
the revolving credit facilities maturing in 2023.

The Company’s bilateral lines, the used balance of which as of 31 December 2022 was €0,4 billion, are
uncommitted credit facilities with various banks to finance general corporate needs. The Company expects it will
be able to continue to renew these in the future or will refinance part of them with committed revolving credit
facilities.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the year-end to the contractual maturity date:

Less than Between Over
Note 1year 1and 5 years 5 years
31 December 2022
Borrowings 17 1.466.151 937.329 28.236
Lease liabilities 18 7.826 8.907 3.424
Derivative financial instruments 23 1.761
Trade and other payables 1.599.133

The amounts included as borrowings and lease liabilities in the table above do not correspond to the balance sheet
amounts as they are the undiscounted contractual cash flows which include capital and interest.

Trade and other payables do not correspond to the balance sheet amounts as they include only financial liabilities.
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3.2 Capital risk management

The Company’s objective with respect to capital structure, which includes both equity and debt funding, is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to have in place an optimal capital structure from a cost
perspective and at the same time to ensure that the requirements of loan financial covenants are met.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with the industry convention, the Company monitors capital structure and indebtedness levels on the
basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital employed. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the statement of
financial position) less “Cash & cash equivalents” and “Investments in equity instruments”. Total capital employed
is calculated as “Total Equity” as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt.

The long-term objective of the Company is to maintain the gearing ratio between 35% and 45%, as significant
fluctuations of crude oil prices may affect total debt respectively. The Company is in process of reviewing its capital

structure and relevant objectives.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December and 3 January 2022 were as follows:

As at

Note 31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Total Borrowings 17 2.226.531 2.498.996
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 13 (469.184) (713.493)
Net debt (excl. lease liabilities) 1.757.347 1.785.503
Total Equity 1.233.233 702.304
Total Capital Employed (excl. lease liabilities) 2.990.580 2.487.807
Gearing ratio (excl. lease liabilities) 59% 72%
Lease liabilities 18 18.171 13.676
Net debt (incl. lease liabilities) 1.775.518 1.799.179
Total Capital Employed (incl. lease liabilities) 3.008.751 2.501.483
Gearing ratio (incl. lease liabilities) 59% 72%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, categorised within the fair value hierarchy
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The different levels
are defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2022:

Year ended 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 bal-:;r\?:caeI
Assets

Derivatives at fair value through the income statement - 5.114 - 5.114
Liabilities

Derivatives held for trading - 1.761 - 1.761

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 3 January 2022:

Total
As of 3 January 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Assets
Derivatives held for trading - 92.143 - 92.143
- 92.143 - 92.143
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading - 1.428 - 1.428
Derivatives used for hedging - 786 - 786
- 2.214 - 2.214

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all

significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

e The fair value of commodity swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
were no transfers between levels.
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The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amount, due to their short-
term nature:

e Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience as adjusted for
current market conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(a) Income taxes

The Company is subject to periodic audits by tax authorities and the assessment process for determining the
company’s current and deferred tax balances is complex and involves high degree of estimation and judgement.
There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where tax
positions are not settled with the tax authorities, Management takes into account past experience with similar
cases, as well as the advice of tax and legal experts in order to analyze the specific facts and circumstances,
interpret the relevant tax legislation, assess other similar positions taken by the tax authorities to form a view
about whether its tax treatments will be accepted by the tax authorities, or whether a provision is needed. Where
the Company is required to make payments in order to appeal against positions of tax authorities and the Company
assesses that it is more probable than not to win its appeal, the respective payments are recorded as assets, as
these advance payments will be returned to the Company, if the Company’s position is upheld. In case the
Company determines a provision is needed for the outcome of the uncertain tax position, any amounts already
paid are deducted from the said provision.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

(b) Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets include certain amounts which relate to carried forward tax losses. Such tax losses are available
for set off for a limited period of time since they are incurred. The Company makes assumptions on whether these
deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business
plans and budgets.

(c) Provision for environmental restoration

The Company operates in the oil industry with its principal activities being that of refining of crude oil and sale of
oil products, and the production and trading of petrochemical products. Environmental damage caused by such
substances may require the Company to incur restoration costs to comply with the regulations in the various
jurisdictions in which the Company operates, and to settle any legal or constructive obligation. Analysis and
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estimates are performed by the Company together with its technical and legal advisers, in order to determine the
probability, timing and amount involved with probable required outflow of resources. Estimated restoration costs,
for which disbursements are determined to be probable, are recognised as a provision in long-term liabilities and
as part of the respective fixed asset cost in the statement of financial position. Subsequently, the effect of
unwinding the discounting of the provision is charged in the finance cost and the fixed asset is depreciated in the
statement of comprehensive income. In case there are changes in estimates or the final determination of such
obligation amounts differ from the recognised provisions, the Company’s statement of comprehensive income is
impacted.

(d) Estimates in value-in-use calculations

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-current asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. The Company will adjust the key assumptions used in value-in-use
calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions, should a change be required. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount of a cash- generating unit (CGU) is determined for impairment tests purposes based on value-in-use
calculations which require the use of assumptions. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management, with consideration to independent third-party data which inter-alia
include forecasted international commodity prices used in the calculation of benchmarks refining margins,
demand evolution and operating costs. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years. Cash flows beyond the period over which projections are available are extrapolated using estimated growth
rates. These growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in country or industry reports specific to the
country and industry in which each CGU operates, and, where appropriate, are further calibrated to the Company’s
long-term objectives in relation to climate related matters, such as diminishing growth rates applied for time
periods where there are no reliable forecasts, but policy objectives indicate that changes in the market are
reasonably expected. Further, the Company constantly monitors the latest government legislation in relation to
climate related matters. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs,
or assets, including a sensitivity analysis on these assumptions, are disclosed and further explained in Note 6, for
Property, Plant and Equipment, and Note 9 for Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures.

(e) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives and certain investments in equity instruments) is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

(f) Provision for expected credit losses of receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on the
Company’s historical credit loss experience, calibrated to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information specific to the debtors and the economic environment. At each year end, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed credit losses, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, management assessed forward-looking information specific to its trade
debtors and the economic environment and recorded additional losses in line with its policies, when needed (note
12).

(g) Retirement benefit obligations

The present value of the pension obligations for the Company’s defined benefit plans depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost/(income) for pensions include the discount rate and salary rate increases. Any changes
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations. The Company determines the
appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency and jurisdiction in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in note 20.

(h) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Company periodically assesses the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether the
original estimated lives continue to be appropriate. To this respect, the Company may obtain technical studies and
use external sources to determine the lives of its assets, which can vary depending on a variety of factors such as

technological innovation and maintenance programs.

(ii) Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

(a) Impairment of non-current assets and investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether indicators for impairment exist, for its non-financial assets
(Note 2.9) and its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The assessment includes both external
and internal factors which include inter-alia, significant changes with an adverse effect in the regulatory or
technological environment or evidence available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic
performance of the asset is, or will be worse than expected. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’s, or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount. Judgment is involved to some extent in determining
whether indicators exist and also for the determination of the cash generating units at which the respective assets
are tested for impairment. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

(b) Provisions for legal claims

The Company has a number of legal claims pending against it (Note 32). Management uses its judgement, as well
as the available information from the legal department and external counsellors when deemed necessary, in order
to assess the likely outcome of these claims and if it is more likely than not that the Company will lose a claim,
then a provision is recognised. Provisions for legal claims, if required, are measured at the present value of
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management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period.

(c) Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The following factors are normally the most relevant: If there are significant penalties to terminate
(or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate). If any leasehold
improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate). Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset. Most extension options in offices and
vehicles leases have not been included in the lease liability, because the Company could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption. The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable
certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

5 Segment information

Group’s Executive Committee reviews the Company’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these reports. The committee
assesses performance taking into account a number of measures which may vary depending on the nature and
evolution of a business segment by taking into account the risk profile, cash flow, product and market
considerations. Information provided to the committee is measured in a manner consistent with that of the
financial statements.

The Company’s key operating segments are:

a) Refining, Supply and Trading (Refining)

Activities revolve around the operation of the Company’s three refineries located in Aspropyrgos, Elefsina and
Thessaloniki, which account for approximately 65% of the country’s total refining capacity. The three refineries
combine a storage capacity of 6,65 million m® of crude oil and petroleum products.

b) Petrochemicals

Petrochemical activities mainly focus on the production and marketing of polypropylene, BOPP films and solvents,
as well as the trading of imported plastics and chemicals. The polypropylene production plant in Thessaloniki
mainly receives propylene produced in the Aspropyrgos refinery. Part of the production of the produced

polypropylene is the raw material used in the BOPP film production unit in Komotini.

More information about the activities of the Company’s key operating segments can be found in the consolidated
Annual Report of the HELLENiIQ ENERGY Group.
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Financial information regarding the Company’s operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
presented below:

Year ended 31 December 2022 Note Refining Petro-chemicals Total
Revenue from contracts with customers 13.086.983 380.360 13.467.343
EBITDA * 1.439.268 67.594 1.506.862
Depreciation and amortisation (PPE & Intangibles) 6,8 (186.657) (5.482) (192.139)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 (3.388) (3.649) (7.037)
Operating profit/(loss) 1.249.223 58.463 1.307.686
Finance (expense)/income 26 (87.825) (1.211) (89.036)
Lease finance cost 26 (431) (39) (470)
Dividend income 1.105 1.918 3.023
Currency exchange gains/(losses) 27 1.366 - 1.366
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 1.163.438 59.131 1.222.569
Income tax 28 (515.426)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 707.143

* EBITDA is calculated as Operating profit/(loss) per the statement of comprehensive income plus depreciation and amortisation

There were no changes in the basis of segmentation or in the basis of measurement of segmental profit or loss,
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers by type of market (domestic, aviation &
bunkering and exports), is presented below:

Year ended 31 December 2022 Refining Petro-chemicals Total
Domestic 4.791.378 146.551 4.937.929
Aviation & Bunkering 2.273.191 - 2.273.191
Exports 6.022.414 233.809 6.256.223
Revenue from contracts with customers 13.086.983 380.360 13.467.343

The segment assets and liabilities on 31 December 2022 and 3 January 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2022 Refining Petro-chemicals Total
Total Assets 5.698.322 170.693 5.869.015
Total Liabilities 4.522.400 113.382 4.635.782
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3 January 2022 Refining Petro-chemicals Total
Total Assets 5.432.470 132.306 5.564.776
Total Liabilities 4.746.700 115.772 4.862.472

There has been no material change in the definition of segments or the segmental analysis of total assets or total
liabilities since 3 January 2022.

6 Property, plant and equipment
Furniture Assets
Plant&  Means of and Under
Land Buildings Machinery  transport fixtures  Construction Total
Cost
As at 3 January 2022 141.448 549.983 4.357.235 15.191 61.125 170.094  5.295.076
Additions - 11 522 710 904 193.686 195.833
Capitalised projects - 3.547 211.943 - 1.236 (216.726) -
Disposals - - - - - (136) (136)
Transfers and other movements - - (19.592) - 150 (835) (20.277)
As at 31 December 2022 141.448 553.541 4.550.108 15.901 63.415 146.083 5.470.496
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 3 January 2022 - 271.162 2.252.839 11.763 53.322 - 2.589.086
Charge for the year - 14.582 173.853 476 2.016 - 190.927
Transfers and other movements - - 69 - 146 - 215
As at 31 December 2022 - 285.744 2.426.761 12.239 55.484 - 2.780.228
Net Book Value at 31 December 2022 141.448 267.797 2.123.347 3.662 7.931 146.083  2.690.268

(1)
(2)

The Company has not pledged any property, plant and equipment as security for borrowings.

Additions mainly include capital expenditures in the refining segment that relate to projects of long-term
maintenance and upgrades of the refining units. These amounts are included in assets under construction
and are reclassified into the relevant asset class when the projects are completed. As of 31 December
2022, such amounts mainly included:

—  Works of the full turnarounds at Elefsina and Thessaloniki refineries, long-term maintenance
and upgrades of the refining units (€149 million)

—  Growth, safety, legislation and environmental expenditures (€43 million)

‘Capitalized projects’ relate to completed assets under construction which are reclassified to their
relevant category. During 2022 an amount of €3 million in respect of interest has been capitalized within
Assets under construction relating to the refining segment, at an average borrowing rate of 2,79%.

‘Transfers and other movements’ include the transfer of spare parts for the refinery units between
inventories and fixed assets, amounting to €19,6 million (note 11), as well as the transfer of computer
software development costs to intangible assets (note 8).
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(5)

The Company constantly monitors the developments in the sector with respect to energy transition as
well as the latest legislation in relation to climate related matters. The significant accounting estimates
made by management incorporate the future effects of the Company’s own strategic decisions and
commitments on having its portfolio adhered to the energy transition targets, short and long-term
impacts of climate-related matters and energy transition to lower carbon energy sources together with
management’s best estimate on global supply and demand, including forecasted commodities prices. The
Company will adjust the key assumptions used in the assessment for indications of impairment and the
value-in-use calculations, if any, in case a change is required in respect with climate related matters.
Management considers the existence of indicators for impairment and performs an assessment for
significant CGUs (Notes 2.1, 4). Management assessed the financial performance of the Refining, Supply,
Trading and Petrochemicals CGU and the outlook of market conditions, taking into consideration the
environmental regulatory consequences and concluded that there are no indicators for impairment as of
31 December 2022.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of €190,9 million, depreciation of right-of-use assets of
€7,0 million and amortisation expense of €1,2 million are allocated in the following lines of the statement
of comprehensive income:

e Cost of Sales €181,3 million,
e Selling and distribution expenses €13,3 million,

e Administration expenses €4,5 million

7 Right-of-use assets
Commercial Plant &
Properties Machinery Motor vehicles Total
Cost
As at 3 January 2022 3.102 13.773 14.038 30.913
Additions 3.164 2.727 5.717 11.608
Modification 68 (1) (51) 16
As at 31 December 2022 6.334 16.499 19.704 42.537
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 3 January 2022 1.373 4918 8.917 15.208
Charge for the period 752 2.117 4.168 7.037
As at 31 December 2022 2.125 7.035 13.085 22.245
Net Book Value at 31 December 2022 4.209 9.464 6.619 20.292
The Company leases a variety of assets in the course of its activities, such as office space, tanks and catalysts, as

well as vehicles.

Part of the Company’s operations require the use of coastal zones. The Company has entered into an agreement
with the State for the use of coastal zones in certain areas. There are, however, other areas where the Company
uses coastal zones and for which no agreement exists. The State may periodically issue a notice for compensation
for the use of the coastal zones for these areas. Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company concluded that the use

of coasta

| zones could meet the criteria of an identified asset under IFRS 16, where an agreement exists. Where

the terms of use by the Greek state are determinable from the agreement, the Company recognizes a right of use
asset within commercial properties and a lease liability representing its obligation to make payments. For instances
where the Company uses coastal zones without an agreement, the Company considers that the arrangement does
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not constitute a lease and provides for compensation for the use of the coast based on the most recently received
notice. For the year ended 31 December 2022, this is estimated at €670 thousand and is included in current
liabilities.

Furthermore, the Company operates a number of underground pipelines within the boundaries of various
municipalities, in accordance with relevant laws. As described in note 32, certain municipalities have proceeded
with the imposition of duties and fines relating to the rights of way. The Company has appealed against such

amounts imposed as described in the note and does not consider that any of these falls within the scope of IFRS
16.

8 Intangible assets
Computer Licences & CO2 emission

software Rights rights Total
Cost
As at 3 January 2022 30.977 24.299 52.752 108.028
Additions 142 - - 142
Purchase of CO2 emission rights 316.128 316.128
Surrender of CO2 emission rights - - (87.764) (87.764)
Transfers & other movements 831 - - 831
As at 31 December 2022 31.950 24.299 281,116 337.365
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 3 January 2022 30.143 24.296 - 54.439
Charge for the year 1.211 1 - 1.212
As at 31 December 2022 31.354 24.297 - 55.651
Net Book Value 31 December 2022 596 2 281.116 281.714

‘Transfers and other movements’ in computer software mainly relate to completed IT software projects capitalised
during the year and thus transferred from assets under construction. These projects are monitored within assets-
under-construction as implementation of the relevant software takes place over a period of time. They are
transferred to Intangible Assets when the implementation of the software has been completed and tested as being
ready for use (note 6).

9 Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

As at
Note 31 December 2022
As at 3 January 2022 24979
Increase / (Decrease) in share capital of subsidiaries (2.375)

Share capital increase through payment of Parent company dividends
to group employees 140
(Impairment) of investments / Reversal of impairment 25 (3.716)
As at 31 December 2022 19.028
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A list of the Company’s direct investments is as follows:

Country of
Name Participating interest Incorporation Classification
ASPROFOS S.A. 100,0% Greece Subsidiary
DIAXON S.A. 100,0% Greece Subsidiary
HELPE APOLLON MARITIME Co (liquidated in 2022) 100,0% Greece Subsidiary
GLOBAL ALBANIA S.A. 99,9% Albania Subsidiary
ATHENS AIRPORT FUEL PIPELINE COMPANY S.A. 50,0% Greece Associate
ARTENIUS HELLAS (under liquidation) 35,0% Greece Associate

a)

b)

‘Increase/(decrease) in share capital of subsidiaries’ relates to the following entities:

— HELPE APOLLON Maritime Company finalized liquidation proceedings during the year, the relevant
investment of €6,0 million was written off and a net amount of €7,1 million was received by the
company. The resulting income of €1,1 million is included in Dividend income in the statement of
comprehensive income

— ASPROFOS S.A. proceeded with a share capital increase and decrease as detailed below
— There was a cash injection of €0,2 million in GLOBAL ALBANIA to cover immediate operational needs

Impairment of investments relates to Asprofos and Global Albania
ASPROFOS S.A.

The recurring losses of the subsidiary company ASPROFOS S.A., the continuous share capital increases in
order to cover the obligations of the subsidiary company and the continuous reductions in share capital of
the subsidiary company with offsetting of losses, along with the developments in the mechanical
construction market that are not favorable for the subsidiary, were considered as indications of a possible
impairment of the Company's investment in its subsidiary. During previous years, impairment tests
performed by the Company's Management led to the full impairment of the Company's investment in its
subsidiary. On January 3, 2022, the net book value of the holding (cost of investment minus impairment)
transferred to the Company due to the spin-off was zero.

During the period ended December 31, 2022, the Company proceeded with the payment of an amount of
€3.4 million to cover the share capital increase of the subsidiary company. In addition, in September 2022
the General Assembly of shareholders of ASPROFOS S.A. approved the reduction of the company's share
capital of €5.3 million, in order to offset its accumulated losses.

On December 31, 2022, Management evaluated the above facts and considered that the indications of
impairment of its investment in the subsidiary continue to exist. Management, analyzing the negative future
cash flows that the subsidiary is estimated to generate in accordance with its five-year business plan (2023 —
2027), concluded that the amount of €3.4 million paid in the context of the share capital increase is not
recoverable and recognised it as an impairment loss in other operating expenses and other losses in the
statement of comprehensive income (note 25).

The subsidiary company GLOBAL ALBANIA S.A has suspended its operation, so the investment is fully
impaired and any increase in participation is immediately written off in the other operating expenses and
other losses in the statement of comprehensive income (note 25).

Notes to the financial statements

A7)/ (72)



Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.

Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS

for the 1%t Fiscal Year from 3 January to 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwise stated)

10 Loans, advances & long-term assets

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Loans and advances 35.360 38.029
Other long term assets 162 3.097
Total 35.522 41.126

Loans and advances as of 31 December 2022 include trade receivables due in more than one year as a result of
settlement arrangements. These are discounted at an average rate of 6,74% as of 31 December 2022 over their
respective lives.

11 Inventories

As at

31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Crude oil 733.522 651.578
Refined products and semi-finished products 796.941 592.800
Petrochemicals 35.777 35.221
Consumable materials and spare parts 124.235 98.973
- Less: Provision for consumables and spare parts (51.723) (32.966)
Total 1.638.752 1.345.606

No pledged inventories exist as of 31 December 2022.

Under IEA and EU regulations Greece is obliged to hold crude oil and refined product stocks in order to fulfil the
EU requirement for compulsory Stock obligations (90 days stock directive), as legislated by Greek Law 3054/2002.
This responsibility is passed on to all companies, including HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A., which import
and sell in the domestic market and who have the responsibility to maintain and finance the appropriate stock
levels. Such stocks are part of the operating stocks and are valued on the same basis.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “Cost of sales” amounted to €11,1 billion. As of
31 December 2022, the Company wrote down inventories to their net realisable value, recording a loss of €24,2
million, included in Cost of Sales in the statement of comprehensive income.

As of 31 December 2022, following an extensive exercise for the classification of spare parts as fixed assets based
on both quantitative and qualitative criteria, the Company re-assessed which of the spare parts can be categorized
as critical for the refinery units and the respective provision for obsolescence. As a result, an amount of €19,6
million (net of cumulative provision) was transferred from property, plant and equipment to inventories (3 January
2022: €36 million were included within fixed assets as capital spare parts, note 6). The amount of additional
provision for consumables and spare parts for the year ended 31 December 2022 is €8 million, with the remaining
increase relating to the aforementioned reclassification.
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12  Trade and other receivables

As at

31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Trade receivables 507.362 441.339
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (112.650) (100.850)
Trade receivables net 394,712 340.489
Other receivables 261.777 178.049
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (6.735) (6.691)
Other receivables net 255.042 171.358
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 47.724 46.400
Total 697.478 558.247

As part of its working capital management, the Company utilises factoring facilities to accelerate the collection of
cash from its customers in Greece. Non-recourse factoring is excluded from balances shown above, since all risks
and rewards of the relevant invoices have been transferred to the factoring institution.

‘Other receivables’ generally include balances in respect of advances to suppliers, advances to personnel, VAT,
withholding taxes and taxes paid (other than income taxes which are shown separately on the statement of
financial position), as a result of tax audit assessments from the tax authorities during previous years. Balance as
of 31 December 2022 mainly includes VAT €60 million (3 January 2022: €9 million), restricted cash mainly related
to margin call accounts of €13 million (3 January 2022: €6 million) and advances to creditors of €14 million (3
January 2022: €5 million). Additionally, other receivables include an amount of €54 million of VAT approved
refunds (3 January 2022: €54 million), which has been withheld by the customs authorities due to a dispute relating
to stock shortages. The Company has filed a specific legal objection and claim against this action and expects to
fully recover this amount following the conclusion of the relevant legal proceedings (Note 32).

The table below analyses total trade receivables:

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Not past due 283.434 250.499
Past due 223.928 190.840
Total trade receivables 507.362 441.339
The overdue days of trade receivables that were past due are as follows:
As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Up to 30 days 104.829 72.059
30-90 days 5.771 1.173
Over 90 days 113.328 117.608
Total past due trade receivables 223.928 190.840
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Regarding trade receivables, an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix
to measure expected credit losses (ECLs). The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of receivable. Collaterals include primarily first- or second-class pre-notices over properties of
the debtor, personal and bank guarantees.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

Not past due Days past due
<30 days 31-90 days >90 days Total
31 December 2022
Expected credit loss rate 0,20% 0,26% 2,70% 98,53% 22,20%
Total gross carrying amount 283.434 104.829 5.771 113.328 507.362
Expected credit loss (569) (268) (156) (111.657) (112.650)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is set out below:

As at
31 December 2022

Balance at 3 January 2022 100.850
Charged/(credited) to the statement of comprehensive income:

- Additional provisions 11.800
Balance at 31 December 2022 112.650

The additional provision for impairment has been included in selling and distribution costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.
The movement in the provision for impairment of other receivables is set out below:

As at
31 December 2022

Balance at 3 January 2022 6.691
Charged/(credited) to the statement of comprehensive income:
- Additional provisions 51
- Unused amounts reversed (7)
Balance at 31 December 2022 6.735

13 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Cash at bank and on hand in Foreign currencies (mostly USD), in Euro
equivalent 145.924 312.753
Cash at bank and on hand in Euro 323.260 400.740
Total cash and cash equivalents 469.184 713.493
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The balance of US Dollars included in Cash at bank as of 31 December 2022 was US$156 million (Euro equivalent
€146 million). The respective amount as of 3 January 2022 was US$354 million (Euro equivalent €313 million).
The weighted average effective interest rate as at the reporting date on cash and cash equivalents was:

As at
31 December 2022

Euro 0,00%
usb 0,01%

14  Share capital

Number of Shares
(authorised and Share Share

issued) Capital premium Total
As at 3 January 2022 130.100.000 1.301.000 - 1.301.000
HELLENIQ ENERGY profits distributed to Company's
employees - - 1.535 1.535
Decrease of share capital (74.986.236) (749.862) - (749.862)
As at 31 December 2022 55.113.764 551.138 1.535 552.673

As of 31 December 2022 and 3 January 2022, all ordinary shares were authorised, issued and fully paid. The
nominal value of each ordinary share is €10,00 (3 January 2022: €10,00).

As of 3 January 2022, the share capital of HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. was comprised of 130.100.000
common, registered shares issued, with a nominal value of €10 each. The share capital of the Company was
determined at the Fair Value of the refining, supply and trading of oil products and petrochemicals net assets as
presented on the transformation balance sheet dated 30 June 2021, pursuant to the provisions of articles 57 and
59-74 of Law 4601/2019 and Law 4548/2018. On 3 January 2022 the demerger was completed and the respective
net assets were hived down at the opening book values on that date, while the difference between the Fair Value
and Book Value, amounting to €749,9 million was accounted as a demerger reserve. This demerger reserve was
offset with the Company’s share capital on 22 December 2022, as approved by the extraordinary general meeting
of its shareholders (note 15).
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15 Reserves

Tax-free
&
Incentive Actuarial
Statutory Special law  Hedging gains/ Demerger
reserve  reserves reserves reserve (losses) reserve Total
Balance at 3 January 2022 - 77.075 74.705 (614) - (749.862)  (598.696)
Cash flow hedges:
- Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow
hedges 23 - - - 4.315 - - 4.315
- Recycling of (gains)/losses on hedges
through comprehensive income 23 - - - (4.941) - - (4.941)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
pension plans 20 - - - - 23.231 - 23.231
Offset demerger reserve with share capital - - - - - 749.862 749.862
Transfer to statutory reserve 35.357 - - - - - 35.357
Balance at 31 December 2022 35.357 77.075 74.705 (1.240) 23.231 - 209.128

Statutory reserve

Under Greek law, corporations are required to transfer a minimum of 5% of their annual net profit as reflected in
their statutory books to a statutory reserve until this reserve is equal to one third of the outstanding share capital.
This reserve cannot be distributed during the existence of the corporation, but can be used to offset accumulated
losses.

Special reserves

Special reserves primarily relate to reserves arising from tax revaluations in accordance with the relevant
legislation in prior years.

Tax-free and incentive law reserves

These reserves relate to retained earnings, which have not been taxed with the prevailing corporate income tax
rate as allowed by Greek law under various statutes and reserves relating to investments under incentive laws.
These reserves will become liable to tax at the rate prevailing at the time of distribution to shareholders or
conversion to share capital under certain conditions.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges and that are recognised in other comprehensive income, as described in note 23. Amounts are reclassified
to profit or loss when the associated hedged transaction affects profit or loss within cost of sales. As of 31
December 2022, the fair value result in hedging reserve relates to transactions described in notes 3 and 23.

Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans

Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans resulting from a) experience adjustments (the effects of
differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions.

Demerger reserve

Refer to notes 1 and 14
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16 Trade and other payables

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Trade payables 1.189.103 1.699.642
Accrued Expenses 398.676 337.769
Other payables 38.764 43.549
Total 1.626.543 2.080.960

Trade payables are comprised of amounts payable or accrued in respect of supplies of crude oil, products and
services, as well as fixed assets.

Trade payables, as of 31 December 2022 and 3 January 2022, include amounts in respect of crude oil imports from
Iran, which were received between December 2011 and March 2012 as part of a long-term contract with NIOC.
Despite repeated attempts to settle the payment for these cargoes through the international banking system
between January and June 2012, it was not possible to do so. In the period from 16 January 2016 up to 8 May
2018, when sanctions were suspended, the Company successfully made several payments against a significant
part of these amounts. Since 8 May 2018, following the re-imposition of relevant sanctions by the United States,
no deliveries of Iranian crude oil or payments have taken place.

Accrued expenses mainly relate to accrued interest, payroll-related accruals and accruals for operating expenses
not yet invoiced.

Accrued expenses as of 31 December 2022, include an amount of €303 million (3 January 2022: €280 million)
relating to the estimated cost of the CO2 emission rights, necessary to meet the Company’s deficit on that date.

Other payables include amounts in respect of payroll-related liabilities, social security obligations and sundry taxes.

17  Interest bearing loans and borrowings

As at

31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Non-current interest bearing loans and borrowings
Committed Revolving credit facilities 739.970 894.598
Intercompany borrowings 134.000 255.098
Total non-current interest bearing loans and borrowings 873.970 1.149.696
Current interest bearing loans and borrowings
Committed Revolving credit facilities 1.236.973 1.349.300
Intercompany borrowings 115.588 -
Total current interest bearing loans and borrowings 1.352.561 1.349.300
Total interest bearing loans and borrowings 2.226.531 2.498.996

Notes to the financial statements
(53)/(72)



Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.

Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS

for the 1%t Fiscal Year from 3 January to 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwise stated)

Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings mature as follows:

As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Between 1 and 2 years 99.821 794.877
Between 2 and 5 years 749.149 321.819
Over 5 years 25.000 33.000
Total non-current interest bearing loans and borrowings 873.970 1.149.696

The respective amounts of contractual (undiscounted) cash flows, which include capital and interest are
disclosed in note 3.1.

The weighted average effective interest margins are as follows:

As at
Bank Borrowings Currency 31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Short-term
- Floating Euribor + margin Euro 2,51% 2,46%
- Floating Libor + margin usbD 2,40% 2,40%
Long-term
- Floating Euribor + margin Euro 2,18% 2,92%

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in Euro and US Dollars:

As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Euro 2.220.001 2.498.996
US dollar 6.530 -
Total interest bearing loans and borrowings 2.226.531 2.498.996

The carrying amount of the borrowings which are denominated in USD relates to recourse factoring.
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Borrowings by maturity as at 31 December 2022 and 3 January 2022 are summarised in the table below
(amounts in € million):

As at

31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Maturity (€ million) (€ million)
€400 million Syndicated RCF Jun 2023 Jun 2023 339 397
€400 million Syndicated RCF Dec 2025 Dec 2025 292 384
€400 million RCF Dec 2023 Dec 2023 279 398
€400 million RCF May 2025 May 2025 348 399
€100 million RCF Mar 2023 Mar 2023 100 100
€100 million RCF Oct 2024 Oct 2024 100 100
€150 million RCF Oct 2023 Oct 2023 150 -
HPF Loan Mar 2023 116 222

Intercompany Bond Loan Feb 2025 94
Intercompany Bond Loan Dec 2025 15 -
Bilateral lines Various 394 500
Total 2.227 2.499

Refer to ‘Liquidity Risk Management’ (Note 3.1) for an analysis of the Company’s plans regarding the facilities
falling due in 2023.

No loans were in default as at 31 December 2022.
Significant movement in borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Revolving Credit Facility €100 million maturing in March 2023

In December 2022 Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. extended the €100 million revolving credit facility for three
months. The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2022 was €100 million. Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.
refinanced the facility in February 2023.

Revolving Credit Facility €150 million maturing in October 2023

In October 2021 Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. issued a new €150 million revolving credit facility with a tenor
of 2 years. The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2022 was €150 million (31 December 2021: €0). Hellenic
Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. refinanced the facility in February 2023.

Revolving Credit Facility €100 million maturing in October 2024

In October 2021 Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. issued a new €100 million revolving credit facility with a tenor
of 3 years. The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2022 was €100 million. Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.
refinanced the facility in February 2023.

Revolving Credit Facility €400 million maturing in May 2025

In November 2022, Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. refinanced a €400 million revolving credit facility with a
new facility of the same principal amount maturing in 2.5 years and 1 year extension option. The outstanding
amount of the facility as at 31 December 2022 was €350 million.

Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility €400 million maturing in December 2025
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In December 2022, Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A. refinanced a €400 million revolving syndicated credit
facility with a new facility of the same principal amount maturing in 3 years and 1 year extension option. The
outstanding amount of the facility as at 31 December 2022 was €295 million.

Intercompany Loans

During 2022, the Company issued 2 new bond loans with HELLENiQ ENERGY HOLDINGS S.A., to finance general
corporate purposes. The remaining outstanding balance of the notes as of 31 December 2022 was €109 million.
The Company also maintains loans with the Group’s central treasury vehicle, HELLENIC PETROLEUM FINANCE PLC
(‘HPF’), with an outstanding balance of €116 million, as of 31 December 2022.

Bilateral facilities
The Company maintains committed and uncommitted credit facilities with various banks to finance general
corporate needs. The facilities mainly comprise of short-term loans which are renewed in accordance with the

Company’s finance needs.

The table below presents the changes in borrowings arising from financing activities:

Cash flows - Cash flows - Non cash
3 January 2022 borrowings borrowings Cash flows - fees 31 December 2022

; movements

(inflows) (outflows)

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
1.349.300 315.000 (549.503) - 237.764 1.352.561
1.149.696 754.000 (793.000) (5.000) (231.726) 873.970
2.498.996 1.069.000 (1.342.503) (5.000) 6.038 2.226.531

18 Lease liahilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

As at 3 January 2022 13.676
Additions 11.608
Modification 16
Interest Cost 26 470
Repayment (capital and interest) (7.639)
Other movements 40
At 31 December 2022 18.171
Current 7.312
Non-current 10.859
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The following are the amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income:

Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense relating to short-term leases

Total amount recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Note

26

As at
31 December 2022

7.037
470
224

7.731

The maturity table of the undiscounted cash flows of the lease liabilities is presented below:

Between 1 and 5

Less than 1 year
31 December 2022

Lease liability 7.826

19 Deferred income tax

years

8.907

Over 5 years

3.424

Total

20.157

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The gross movement on the deferred income tax liability is as follows:

Beginning of the year
Income statement charge/(credit)
Charged / (released) to equity

End of year

Deferred tax relates to the following types of temporary differences:

Intangible and tangible fixed assets

Inventory valuation

Environmental provision

Unrealised exchange gains

Employee benefits provision

Provision for bad debts

Derivative financial instruments at fair value

Net interest cost carried forward (thin capitalisation)
Net operating losses carried forward

Provision for write-down in investments of associates
Lease contracts

Other temporary differences relating to provisions and accruals

Net deferred income tax asset/(liability)

As at
Note 31 December 2022
(71.803)
28 (94.570)
28 (6.375)
(172.748)
As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
(228.662) (225.993)
12.565 10.831
3.966 46.841
(3.649) (5.062)
30.310 36.417
5.062 5.674
(738) (20.099)
- 33.514
- 39.488
8.947 8.130
(467) (447)
(82) (1.097)
(172.748) (71.803)
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Deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carry-forwards are recognised if it is probable that they can be offset against
future taxable profits. As of 3 January 2022, an amount of deferred tax assets on tax loss carry-forwards totalling
€39 million and another €33 relating to net interest costs carried forward, in accordance with thin capitalization
rules as per art.49 of law 4172/2013 were recognised, as they related to the Company’s Refining sector. Both
amounts were fully offset against taxable profits for the year, therefore the respective deferred tax assets, as of
31 December 2022, were nil.

20 Retirement benefit obligations

The table below outlines where the Company’s retirement benefit amounts and activity are included in the
financial statements.

As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Statement of Financial position obligations for:
Pension benefits 138.173 165.422
Liability in the Statement of Financial position 138.173 165.422
As at
31 December 2022
Statement of Comprehensive Income charge for:
Pension benefits 14.085
Total in the statement of comprehensive income 14.085
As at
31 December 2022
Remeasurements for:
Pension benefits (29.783)
Income tax 6.552
Total as per Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (23.231)
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Present value of funded obligations 12.357 14.052
Fair value of plan assets (3.493) (2.944)
Deficit of funded plans 8.864 11.108
Present value of unfunded obligations 129.309 154.314
Liability in the Statement of Financial Position 138.173 165.422

The plans are final salary pension plans. The level of benefits provided depend on members’ length of service and
remuneration.
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The movement in the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Present Value of Fair Value of Plan Total
Obligation Assets
As at 3 January 2022 168.366 (2.944) 165.422
Current service cost 8.017 - 8.017
Interest expense/(income) 2.171 (16) 2.155
Past service costs & (gains)/losses on settlements 3.913 - 3.913
Statement of comprehensive income charge 14.101 (16) 14.085
Remeasurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in Interest
expense/(income) - (6) (6)
- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (33.042) - (33.042)
- Experience (gains)/losses 3.265 - 3.265
Statement of other comprehensive income charge (29.777) (6) (29.783)
Benefits paid directly by the Company/Contributions paid by the
Company (9.717) (1.834) (11.551)
Benefit payments from the plan (1.307) 1.307 -
As at 31 December 2022 141.666 (3.493) 138.173
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits is as follows:
Less than Between Between Over
Balance at 31 December 2022 ayear 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
Pension Benefits 14.082 21.428 30.101 132.603 198.214
Plan assets are comprised as follows:
31 December 2022
Quoted Unquoted Total %
Equity Instruments 126 - 126 4%
Debt Instruments:
- Government bonds 1.286 - 1.286 37%
- Corporate bonds 1.687 - 1.687 48%
Investment funds 290 - 290 8%
Cash and cash equivalents 105 - 105 3%
Total 3.494 - 3.494
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
As at
31 December 2022
Discount Rate 3,79%
Future Salary Increases 2,50% - 2,60%
Inflation 2,60%
Average future working life in years (plan duration) 8,43

Notes to the financial statements
(59)/(72)



Hellenic Petroleum R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A.

Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS

for the 1%t Fiscal Year from 3 January to 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwise stated)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase Decrease

assumption in DBO in DBO
Discount Rate 0,50% -3,92% 4,22%
Future Salary Increases 0,50% 4,21% -

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial
position.

Expected contributions to defined benefit plans for the following year amount to €0,3 million. The weighted
average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years.

21 Provisions

The movement for provisions during the year is as follows:

Provisions for Provisions for other

Litigation provisions environmental costs liabilities and charges

At 3 January 2022 7.318 14.930 22.248
Charged/(credited) to the statement of comprehensive income:

- Additional provisions 475 3.149 3.624

Utilised during year (922) (123) (1.045)

At 31 December 2022 6.871 17.956 24.827

Long-term provisions as at 31 December 2022 comprise of amounts for pending legal claims and environmental
restoration costs.

22  Other non-current liabilities

As at
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Government grants 5.751 6.298
Other LT payables 11 439
Total 5.762 6.737

Government grants

Government grants relate to grants for the purchase of property, plant and equipment. Amortisation for 2022
amounted to €0,5 million.
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Other long-term payables

Other long-term payables, generally include sundry operating items arising from the Company’s ordinary activities.

23  Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives at fair value through the income

statement
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Commodity Derivative type Notional Amount Assets  Liabilities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
MT'000  Bbls'000 € € MT'000  Bbls'000 € €
Commodity Swaps - Crude & oil products - 2.178 - 1.761 34 1.680 - 1.428
Commodity Swaps - EUA 5.000 - 5.114 - 2.400 - 92.143 -
5.000 2.178 5.114 1.761 2.434 1.680 92.143 1.428
Derivatives designated as Cash Flow
Hedges
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Commodity Derivative type Notional Amount Assets  Liabilities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
MT'000  Bbls'000 € € MT'000  Bbls'000 € €
Commodity Swaps - Crude & oil products - - - - - 230 - 786
- - - - - 230 - 786
Total 5.114 1.761 92.143 2,214
31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Current portion
Commodity swaps 5.114 1.761 92.143 2.214
5.114 1.761 92.143 2.214
Total 5.114 1.761 92.143 2.214

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. However, where
derivatives do not meet the accounting hedging criteria, they are classified as ‘derivatives at fair value through the
income statement’ for accounting purposes.

As at 31 December 2022, derivatives at fair value through the income statement include commodity swaps for
CO2 certificates (Notes 3 and 15).

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

During the year ended 31 December 2022 amounts transferred to the statement of comprehensive income,
relating to contracts that were settled during the year, amounted to a gain of €4,9 million, net of tax.

The remaining cash flow hedges are highly effective and the movement in their fair value, amounting to a gain of
€4,3 million net of tax as at 31 December 2022, is included in the hedging reserve (see note 15).

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of
the hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturity of the hedged item is
less than 12 months.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the derivative assets in the statement

of financial position.

24  Expenses by nature

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Raw materials and consumables used 11.145.607
Employee costs 218.113
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 197.964
Amortization of intangible assets 1.212
Transportation and warehouse costs 94.595
Production overheads 265.770
Swaps (gains)/losses 36.759
Stock devaluations 24.191
Other expenses 191.057
Total expenses 12.175.268
Expenses capitalised in assets under construction (23.203)
Total cost of sales, distribution cost and administrative expenses 12.152.065

Other expenses mainly comprise items relating to maintenance & site expenses, insurance costs, provision for
impairment of receivables, corporate social responsibility costs, third party services (consultancy & legal)
expenses, IT costs and advertising and promotion costs.

“SWAPS gains / (losses)” comprise the total amounts included in comprehensive income for derivatives at fair
value through profit or loss whether realized or unrealized and the effect of recycling for derivatives held for
hedging (Note 3 and 23).

Employee costs

Employee costs are set out in the table below:

For the year ended

31 December 2022
Wages and salaries 147.359
Social security costs 33.248
Defined benefit plans 11.426
Defined contribution plans 12.410
Other benefits - emoluments 13.670
Total 218.113

Other employment benefits include medical insurance, catering and transportation expenses. as well as voluntary
retirement scheme costs of €2,3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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25  Other operating income / (expenses) and other gains / (losses)

Other operating income/(expenses) and other gains / (losses) are analysed as follows:

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2022
Other operating income and other gains
Income from grants 31 547
Services to third parties 8.282
Rental income 480
Insurance compensation 76
Gains on disposal of non-current assets 1.552
Other 1.910
Total 12.847
Other operating expenses and other losses
Covid-19 related expenses (2.649)
Discounting of long-term receivables (1.022)
Provision for environmental restoration 21 (3.149)
Impairment of investments 9 (3.716)
Other (9.903)
Total (20.439)

Other operating income / (expenses) and other gains / (losses), include amounts which do not relate to the trading
activities of the Company (e.g. rental income and sales of personnel services to subsidiaries). Impairment of
investments mainly includes the impairment in ASPROFOS S.A. (Note 9).

Covid-19 related expenses of €2,6 million relate to the cost for protective measures in all Company’s premises.

“Other” in other operating expenses and other losses includes €7 million for a litigation provision which relates to
receivables (note 32).

26 Finance income / (expense)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Interest income 2.912
Interest expense (70.870)
Other finance costs (21.078)
Lease finance cost (470)
Finance costs - net (89.506)

Finance costs amounting to €3,4 million have been capitalised (note 6).
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27  Currency exchange gains / (losses)

Company’s foreign currency exchange gains of €1.4 million reported for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly
relate to unrealized losses arising from the valuation of bank accounts denominated in foreign currency (mostly
usD).

28 Income tax expense

The income tax (expense) / credit relating to components of comprehensive income, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Current tax (176.277)
Prior year tax (5)
Additional one-off solidarity tax FY2022 (L.5007/22) (303.913)
less: tax benefit on one-off solidarity tax FY2022 (L.5007/22) 66.861
Prior years' disputed taxes (7.522)
Deferred tax (Note 19) (94.570)
Total (515.426)

The tax (charge) / credit relating to components of other comprehensive income, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Tax (charge)/
Before tax credit After tax
Cash flow hedges (803) 177 (626)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit pension plans 29.783 (6.552) 23.231
Other comprehensive income 28.980 (6.375) 22.605

The corporate income tax rate of legal entities in Greece for the period ended 31 December 2022 is 22%. This was
enforced according to the provisions of Law 4799/2021, issued in May 2021, where the corporation income tax
rate was amended to 22%, effective from tax year 2021 onwards.

The deferred tax charge of €94 million included within income taxes mainly relates to the utilization of tax losses
that arose during previous years and carried forward, as well as utilization of deferred tax asset relating to thin
capitalization (note 19).

In accordance with the applicable tax provisions, tax audits are conducted as follows:
Assurance by Certified Auditors - Tax Compliance Report

Effective from fiscal years ending 31 December 2011 onwards, Greek companies meeting certain criteria can
obtain an “Annual Tax Compliance Report” as provided for by par. 5, article 82 of L.2238/1994 and article 65A of
L. 4174/2013, as of 2014, from their statutory auditor with regards to compliance with tax law. The issuance of a
Tax Compliance Report under certain conditions, substitutes the full tax audit by the tax authorities, however the
tax authorities reserve the right of future tax audit taking into consideration the statute of limitation provisions.
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Management expects that the same will also apply for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Audits by Tax Authorities

As of 3 January 2022, €13,9 million of disputed amounts relating to income taxes and related interest and
penalties, were recognised by HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A., as they, as they related to the Company’s
Refining sector. As of 31 December 2022, the income tax receivables relating to uncertain tax positions amount
to €11,7 million (as explained in Notes 2.18, 4 and 32). The timing of the finalization of these disputes cannot be
estimated and the Company has classified these amounts as current assets.

Notwithstanding the possibility of future tax audits, Management believes that no additional material liability will
arise as a result of unaudited tax years over and above the tax liabilities and provisions recognised in the financial
statements as of 31 December 2022 (Note 32).

Temporary Solidarity Contribution

On October 6th, the Council Regulation (EU) 2022/1854 was issued regarding an emergency intervention to
address high energy prices.

In Greece the relevant Law 5007/2022 was issued in December 2022, providing details of the enforcement of the
temporary solidarity contribution, which is imposed on companies with activities in the crude petroleum, natural
gas and refinery sectors. The contribution is calculated on the taxable profits (as determined under national tax
rules) in the fiscal year 2022, which are above a 20% increase of the average taxable profits in the four fiscal years
starting on or after January 1st 2018, at a rate of 33% in addition to the existing income tax rate.

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Profit before Tax 1.222.569
Tax calculated at corporation tax rate 22% (268.965)
Tax on income not subject to tax 665
Tax on expenses not deductible for tax purposes (3.070)
Adjustments for tax of prior periods 2.177
Prior years' disputed taxes (7.522)
Additional one-off solidarity tax FY2022 (L.5007/22) (303.913)
less: tax credit on one-off solidarity tax FY2022 (L.5007/22) 66.861
Other movements (1.659)
Tax (Charge) / Credit (515.426)
Effective tax rate 42,3%

29  Earnings/(Losses) per share

Basic earnings/(losses) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period, excluding the
weighted average number of treasury shares. As of 31 December 2022, there were no treasury shares. Diluted
earnings/(losses) per share equal basic earnings/(losses) per share.
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As at
31 December 2022 3 January 2022
Earnings/(Losses) per share attributable to the Company Shareholders
(expressed in Euro per share): 12,83 -
Net income/(loss) attributable to ordinary shares
(Euro in thousands) 707.143
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 55.113.764 130.100.000

30 Dividends per share

At its meeting held on 22 September 2022, the Board of Directors decided to distribute an interim dividend for
the financial year 2022, which amounts to €200,3 million, is included in the financial statements for the year ended
2022 and was paid in December 2022.

At its meeting held on 22 March 2023, the Board of Directors decided to propose a final dividend of €2,26 per
share for the fiscal year 2022, which amounts to €124,8 million. The total dividend for the fiscal year 2022 is €5,90
per share, amounting to €325,2 million. The dividend for the financial year 2022 is subject to approval by the AGM
on 27 March 2023.

31 Cash generated from / (used in) operations

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2022
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1.222.569
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant & equipment and right of use assets 6,7 197.964
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 8 1.212
Amortisation of grants 25 (547)
Financial expenses/(income) - net 26 89.506
Provisions for expenses and valuation changes 148.487
Amortisation of long-term contracts costs 25 1.022
(Gains)/Losses on disposal of non-current assets 41
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses 27 (1.366)
Dividend income (3.023)
1.655.865

Changes in working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (281.431)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (50.642)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables (813.180)
(1.145.253)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 510.612
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32 Contingencies and litigation

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters arising in the
ordinary course of business. The majority of these were transferred to HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.5.0.P.P. S.A.
during the hive-down (note 1), as they related to the Company’s Refining and Petrochemicals sectors. The most
significant of these are disclosed below:

Business Issues
(i) Unresolved legal claims

The Company is involved in a number of legal proceedings and has various unresolved claims pending arising in
the ordinary course of business. Based on currently available information and the opinion of legal counsel,
management believes that the final outcome will not have a significant effect on the Company’s operating results
or financial position and that no additional provisions, over and above provisions already reflected in the financial
statements, are required.

Former HELPE SA had filed on 29.09.2014 a lawsuit versus the Greek State claiming the amount of €7.4 million
from undue retentions effected in favour of the pension funds of the Armed Forces on the price of products sold
to the Army during 2011 and 2012. The First Instance Court has rejected the lawsuit by virtue of Decision No.
1661/2019 and such decision has been upheld by virtue of Decision No. 4781/2022 the Appellate Court that has
ruled on the case further to an appeal filed by the company. Management has decided not to appeal further before
the Supreme Court. The amount of €7.4 million has been posted to "Other operating expenses and other losses"
(Note 25).

Rights of way occupied by underground pipelines

During the current and preceding year, a number of Municipalities proceeded with the imposition of duties and
fines relating to the rights of way occupied by underground pipelines operated by the Company within the
boundaries of each respective municipality. As at 31 December 2022, the total amounts imposed total €55,6
million (3 January 2022: €53,3 million). In order to appeal against these, and in accordance with legislation, the
Company has paid an amount of €27,8 million (3 January 2022: €19,4 million), which is included in other
receivables in the financial statements.

The Company has exercised all available legal recourse relating to these cases and Management have assessed
that it is most probable that the outcome of all appeals will be favourable.

(ii) Guarantees

The Company has provided letters of comfort and guarantees in favour of banks as security for loans granted by
them to subsidiaries and associates of the Group. The outstanding amount of these as at 31 December 2022 was
the equivalent of €600 million.

As of 31 December 2022, the Company has also provided corporate guarantees amounting to €12,3 million. Also,
as at 31 December 2022, the intragroup corporate guarantees provided to the Custom Authorities for the
transportation of energy products within the bonded warehouse regime amounted to €46,6 million.

Taxation and customs

The tax framework and practices in Greece, which determine the tax base for the Company’s transactions, entail
in inherent uncertainties, due to its complexity and it being subject to changes and alternative interpretation by
relevant authorities at different points in time and across different entities. As a result, there may be types of
expenses or treatments for which a company may be assessed on a different basis than the one adopted during
the preparation of its tax return and the financial statements. Based on past experience tax audits were carried
out by tax authorities on average 5-7 years after the filing of the tax return. In addition, where a tax audit results
in a different view to that adopted by the Company, the process for resolving the issue is usually through a court
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of law proceeding, which has many stages and can take a considerable number of years to reach its final and
irrevocable ruling. For an entity to engage in this process, a minimum down payment of 50% of the total tax and
surcharges assessed is required.

All of the above result in inherent difficulties in the determination and accounting of tax liabilities. As a result,
management aims to determine its policy based on specific legislation available at the time of accounting for a
transaction, obtain specialist legal and tax advice on individual cases and utilise prior tax audits experience and
rulings, including relevant court decisions. This process ensures that the financial statements reflect any material
tax and customs liabilities as accurately and completely as possible.

(i) Open tax years — litigation tax cases:

As disclosed in Note 28, tax audits have been completed by the Tax Authorities up to and including the financial
year ended 31 December 2014. The Tax audit reports for years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 were received
in December 2017 and they are subject to legal dispute by the Company. In summary, the reports assess additional
taxes of €22,5 million and penalties of €23,5 million for items relating to stamp duty, various non-deductible
expenses and other income tax adjustments. Following a detailed review of the Tax Audit Report, the Company
has disputed the additional taxes imposed (which are over and above the amounts already included in the
Company’s normal tax returns) and proceeded with all possible legal means and actions to appeal against these
additional taxes and surcharges imposed.

Even though the Company disputed the additional taxes and surcharges imposed, it was obliged to pay 50% of the
assessed amounts (taxes and surcharges) to the Tax Authorities, in order to appeal the results of the tax audits.
This was paid within the applicable deadline, while the remaining amounts have been fully offset by the
Authorities, with tax and other State receivables of the Company, within 2018. Such amounts are included in
‘Income tax receivable’ if they relate to income tax, or in “Trade and other receivables’ if they relate to other taxes,
as the Company assesses that it will succeed in its appeals. As far as surcharges are concerned, the report has
assessed amounts at 120% of the original tax instead of the applicable 50%; this is also being legally challenged by
the Company.

During March 2020, a notification for audit was received, for the years 2014 up to and inclusive 2017. The audit is
related to specific tax subjects and the final Tax Audit Report is expected, without findings. Moreover, during July
2020, a new notification for full audit was received for the year 2014 regarding all tax subjects. The audit is finalized
and the Tax audit Reports were received in December 2020. The reports assess additional amounts of €16,2
million, penalties of € 8,1 million and surcharges of € 9,5 million for alleged stamp duty, while various non-
deductible expenses and other income tax adjustments have no payment impact, since in 2014 the Company has
tax losses. Following a detailed review of the Tax Audit Reports, the Company disputes the additional amounts
imposed. In January 2021 the Company followed the relevant administrative procedure against the tax assessment
paying the minimum required amount of 50% of the total tax and surcharges, amounting to €16,9 million and
expects that it will succeed in its appeals and the relevant amounts will be fully recovered.

Management believes that no additional material liability will arise either as a result of open tax years or from the
outcome of current litigation cases over and above the tax liabilities and provisions already recognised in the
financial statements as at 31 December 2022. The Company has recorded down payments made for taxes and
penalties assessed in previous disputes with the tax authorities in income tax, to the extent that the Company has
assessed that the amounts will be ultimately recoverable.

(ii) Assessments of customs, duties and fines

In 2008, Customs authorities assessed additional customs duties and penalties amounting to approximately €40
million for alleged “stock shortages” during the years 2001-2005. The Company has duly filed contestations before
the Administrative Court of First Instance and Management believes that this case will have a positive outcome
when the legal procedure will be concluded.
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Notwithstanding the filing of the above contestations, the Customs office withheld an amount of €54 million (full
payment plus surcharges) of established VAT refunds (note 12), an action against which the Company filed two
Contestations before the Administrative Courts of Athens and Piraeus. The Administrative Court of Athens ruled
that the withholding effected by the Tax Office was unlawful. The appeal against the Customs Act No 935/2008
amounting to €3,5 million, was heard at first instance, was dismissed and the Company has appealed to the
Supreme Administrative Court against the decision. The hearing was initially set for 9 June 2021 and was finally
postponed for 1 March 2023. In November 2020 the hearing of the Customs Act No 989/2008, amounting at €
35,7 million, took place before the Administrative Court of Piraeus, while a new hearing took place on 6 April 2022
and the relevant decision is pending.

The Company considers that the above amounts will be recovered.

33 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Significant contractual commitments amount to €44 million as at 31 December 2022 (3 January 2022: €52
million), which mainly relate to improvements in refining assets.

(b) Letters of Credit

The Company is requested to provide bank letters of credit to suppliers in order to obtain better commercial
and credit terms. To the extent that such items are already recorded as liabilities in the financial statements,
there is no additional commitment to be disclosed. In cases where the underlying transaction occurs after
the year end, the Company is not liable to settle the letter of credit and hence no such liability exists as at
the year end. As of 31 December 2022, there were open letters of credit relating to purchase orders,
amounting to €187 million.

(c) Putand call option

HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P.S.A. is counterparty to outstanding put and call option agreements to
purchase oil stock from the Group’s associate OTSM. The put and call options may be exercised by either
counterparty at any time before maturity under certain conditions. The value of these two options (put and
call) is immaterial due to the fact that the terms of the agreements are such that the transactions will be
market priced resulting in zero payoff at any time of exercise.
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34 Related party transactions

Included in the statement of comprehensive income are proceeds, costs and expenses, that arise from
transactions between the Company and related parties. Such transactions are mainly comprised of sales and
purchases of goods and services in the ordinary course of business.

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Sales of goods and services to related parties

Group entities 5.290.691
Associates 99.895
Joint ventures 479
Total 5.391.065

Purchases of goods and services from related parties

Group entities 92.896
Associates 141.799
Joint ventures 171.065
Total 405.760

Other operating income/(expenses) & other gains/(losses) for 2022 include other income from subsidiaries,
amounting to €8,2 million and other expenses amounting to €0,4 million.

Dividends received from subsidiaries amount to €3,0 million and are included in line “Dividend Income” in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The statement of financial position includes balances, which derive from sales / purchases of goods and services
in the ordinary course of business.

Balances due to / from related parties

As at

31 December 2022 03 January 2022
Balances due to related parties
Group entities 26.973 11.925
Associates 13.475 15.329
Total 40.448 27.254
Balances due from related parties
Group entities 274.703 154.495
Associates 8.451 5.284
Joint ventures 8.752 48.069
Total 291.905 207.848
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Transactions have been carried out with the following related parties:
a) Hellenic Petroleum Group companies. Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 9.

b) Associates and joint ventures of the Group, which are consolidated under the equity method:
e Athens Airport Fuel Pipeline Company S.A. (EAKAA)
e DEPA Commercial S.A. (ex Public Gas Corporation of Greece S.A. — DEPAS.A.)
e DEPA International Projects S.A.
e Elpedison B.V.
e Spata Aviation Fuel Company S.A. (SAFCO)
e D.M.E.P. HOLDCO
e VLPGPlant LTD

¢) Government related entities which are under common control with the Company due to the shareholding
and control rights of the Hellenic State and with which the Company has material transactions or balances:
e  Public Power Corporation Hellas S.A.
e Hellenic Armed Forces
e Hellenic Distribution Network Operator SA (HEDNO)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, transactions and balances with the above government related entities
are as follows:

e Sales of goods and services amounted to €262 million;

e  Purchases of goods and services amounted to €3 million;

e Receivable balances of €15 million (3 January 2022: €9 million); and

e No payable balances as of 31 December 2022 and 3 January 2022.

d) Key management includes directors (Executive and Non-Executive Members of the board of HELLENIC
PETROLEUM R.S.S.0.P.P. S.A)) and General Managers. The compensation paid or payable to the
aforementioned key management amounted as follows:

For the year ended

31 December 2022
Short-term employee benefits 1.641
Post-employment benefits 21
Total 1.662

e) The Company has received loans from its subsidiaries. The outstanding balance of these loans as at 31
December 2022 was €250 million (3 January 2022: €255 million). Interest expense for the year was €10
million. All loans are at variable interest rates. The average interest rate on inter-company loans was 3,9%.
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35 Events after the end of the reporting period

No significant events took place after the end of the reporting period and up to the date of the publication of the
financial statements.
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